
Children's Scrutiny Panel  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 14 December 2022 
 
TIME:  6.00 pm 
 
VENUE: The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton,M27 
5DA. 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

 GUIDANCE FOR ATTENDING FACE TO FACE PUBLIC 
MEETINGS AT SALFORD CIVIC CENTRE  
 

(Pages 3 - 4) 

1   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2   Minutes of the previous meeting (to follow)  
 
Minutes from the meeting held on 9th November 2022. 
 

 

3   Education peformance data - Cathy Starbuck  
 
Report of the Strategic Director People. 
 

(Pages 5 - 26) 

4   Children's Services Revenue Monitoring 2022/23 (Q2) - Alex 
Archer  
 
Report of the Strategic Director People. 
 

(Pages 27 - 33) 

5   Membership and Work Programme  
 

 

5a Membership  
 
Approval of the following nominations for panel members: 

 Phil Roebuck – elected parent governor representative 

 Amy Richards – Free Church Representative 

 Janet Clarke – RC Diocese Representative 
 

 

5b Work Programme  (Pages 34 - 35) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
6   Any Other business  

 
 

7   Date, time and business for next meeting  
 
Wednesday 11th January 2023 at 6pm in The Salford Suite. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 



Last updated 03.10.22 

Face to face public meetings at Salford Civic Centre  
 
Face to face public meetings are being held in Old Town Hall Building at the Civic 
Centre and currently most meetings are being held in The Salford Suite, the Council 
Chamber and it is hoped in the next couple of months that the committee rooms will 
also be available for public meetings. The venue for each meeting is shown on the 
agenda for each meeting and these are published on the city council website here.   

 

1. Important information for attending public meetings in the Salford Suite  

a. Where to enter the building 
You must enter at the main Reception and report to the Reception Desk.  You will 
be directed to the correct meeting room and given access to the building by the 
member of staff on duty. 
  

For evening meetings, if the Reception is closed, 
please press the out of hours buzzer to gain access. 
This can be found on the metal panel on the stand 
next to the Reception doors.  
 

 
 
 

 

b. Accessible access to the Council Chamber 

The public gallery for the Council Chamber is accessed by a staircase.  If this is 

not suitable for you there are spaces in the council chamber available for the 

public who cannot access the gallery.  To access these spaces, please email 

decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk a few days in advance of the meeting 

(if possible) and the clerk for the meeting will arrange this for you.  

 

2. What to do if you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, including 

COVID-19, and have not taken a COVID-19 test.  

The advice on the gov.uk website says: 

• Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have symptoms 

of a respiratory infection, such as COVID-19, and you have a high 

temperature or do not feel well, try to stay at home and avoid contact with 

other people, until you no longer have a high temperature (if you had one) or 

until you no longer feel unwell. 

• If you leave your home while you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, 

and you have a high temperature or feel unwell, the following actions will 

reduce the chance of passing on your infection to others: 

o wearing a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical 
face mask 

o avoiding crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, 
or anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated 

o covering your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your 
hands frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser 
after coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or 
handle food and avoid touching your face. 

Page 3

Agenda Annex

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/people-with-symptoms-of-a-respiratory-infection-including-covid-19


Last updated 03.10.22 

 

3. What to do if you have a positive COVID-19 test result 

The advice on the gov.uk website says: 

• Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have a positive 

COVID-19 test result, it is very likely that you have COVID-19 even if you do 

not have any symptoms. You can pass on the infection to others, even if you 

have no symptoms. 

• Many people with COVID-19 will no longer be infectious to others after 5 

days. If you have a positive COVID-19 test result, try to stay at home and 

avoid contact with other people for 5 days after the day you took your test. At 

the end of this period, if you have a high temperature or feel unwell, try to 

follow this advice until you feel well enough to resume normal activities and 

you no longer have a high temperature if you had one. 

• Although many people will no longer be infectious to others after 5 days, 

some people may be infectious to other people for up to 10 days from the 

start of their infection. You should avoid meeting people at higher risk of 

becoming seriously unwell from COVID-19, especially those whose immune 

system means that they are at higher risk of serious illness from COVID-19, 

despite vaccination, for 10 days after the day you took your test. 

• If you leave your home during the 5 days after your positive test result the 

following steps will reduce the chance of passing on COVID-19 to others: 

o wear a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical 

face mask. 

o avoid crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, or 

anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated. 

o cover your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your hands 

frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser after 

coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or handle 

food; avoid touching your face. 

Page 4

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/people-with-symptoms-of-a-respiratory-infection-including-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk


   
 

 1 

 Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PEOPLE 
 

TO  
CHILDREN’S SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

ON  
14TH DECEMBER 2022 

 
TITLE: EDUCATION OUTCOMES 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

 To note the contents of this report and the challenges post covid for children’s 
learning and the implications for the system to enhance learning and progress to 
ensure all children achieve their potential  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
The report outlines the 2022 education outcomes for the city across all phases (See 
Appendix 1 for overview) and a summary of the strategic approach, in partnership 
with education leaders in schools and settings to address the challenges to ensure 
children in their schools and settings to catch up in their learning and to enable them 
to be ‘ready’ for the next phase.  Our approach to ensure our children and young 
people have the best chance of achieving their potential is constantly being 
developed, being refined in dialogue with leaders. 
 
All the data used is provisional and unvalidated at this stage. Education leaders and 
the DFE are clear that the main purpose of these statutory assessments will be to 
help understand more clearly the impact of the pandemic on pupils and schools and 
how this varies between particular groups of pupils, schools and local authority 
areas. All stakeholders, including the DFE, recognise the uneven impact on schools 
of the pandemic and the challenges with interpreting the 2021/22 data. The 
Government have also clearly stated that 2021/22 data is not directly comparable 
with earlier years and anyone using this data should be aware of the caveats on the 
data due to the uneven impact of the pandemic on pupils and schools and be 
sensitive in their use of it. 
 
For early years and primary 2022 data shows a reduction in Salford’s outcomes 
compared to 2019. This mirrors the national and regional picture due to the impact of 
Covid when children missed out on so much time at school but the gap in general 
between Salford and national is wider. This demonstrates clearly the impact of our 
education and early years strategy whilst business as usual provision is in place. It is 
well evidenced also that children living in poverty were also disproportionately 
impacted in terms of their learning during the pandemic. In Salford 22.0% of children 
live with poverty and whilst this has fallen in the most recent year it is still almost 
a fifth higher than the national level (18.7%). 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



   
 

 2 

The secondary outcome data shows an increase overall in outcomes in Salford since 
2019. Outcomes in 2022 have shown an improvement in all metrics both locally and 
nationally. This is because unlike primary outcomes which are measured to a defined 
standard Ofqual advised all exam board to set the grading at the mid-point between 
2019 and 2021 to ensure this year’s cohort weren't disadvantaged compared to their 
peers in the two previous years who did not sit examinations.  
 
 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Opportunity for all: strong schools with great teachers 
for your child - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 
KEY DECISION: NO  

 
DETAILS: 
 
1. Salford Context 

 
There is strong collaborative culture across Salford schools both with each other, 
working in geographical clusters and with the Local Authority. This collaborative 
approach sits at the heart of our Education and school improvement strategies in the 
city to ensure our children and young people achieve their full potential.  
 
As of August 2022, 97% of Salford early years providers were judged by Ofsted as 
‘good’ or ‘outstanding’, compared to 96% nationally. 94% of primary schools are judged 
good or better by Ofsted (as of 31st August  22) compared to 90% nationally. 88% of 
specialist settings ( specials and PRUs) are judged good or better and 55% of 
secondary schools currently, compared to 80% nationally, though a number are due 
inspection, which have been delayed due to the pandemic.  
 
Due to this high quality of early years and primary provision, education outcomes for 
children and young people and the progress made in primary schools, has been a 
strength in Salford over time. Trends over a number of years have shown that 
children’s starting points from early years have been below national average and by 
the time the children leave primary school their Key Stage 2 outcomes are at national 
average. Over time, secondary performance are below national average. 
 

Pupils maintaining a good level of attendance to enable them to learn to their full 
potential at both primary and secondary level across Salford is a key priority and this 
has been exacerbated since the pandemic. This is outlined by the latest validated 
data available from 2021. At secondary level, overall absence and persistently 
absence rates (those pupils whose attendance is below 90%, equating to one day off 
school every two weeks) are above national averages. Overall absence in Salford is 
7.2% compared to 5.7% regionally and 5.5% nationally. 22% of pupils are 
persistently absent compared to 15.7% regionally and14.8% nationally respectively.  

Absence rates at primary level are also higher than the national average. Overall 
absence stands at 4.2% compared to 3.6% regionally and nationally, and persistent 
absence at 11.1% compared to 8.8% regionally and nationally. 

 

Page 6

https://ofqual.blog.gov.uk/2022/07/06/exam-results-2022-10-things-to-know-about-gcse-as-and-a-level-grades/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/opportunity-for-all-strong-schools-with-great-teachers-for-your-child
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/opportunity-for-all-strong-schools-with-great-teachers-for-your-child
https://www.salford.gov.uk/schools-and-learning/school-improvement/education-strategy/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/schools-and-learning/school-improvement/education-strategy/


   
 

 3 

Salford is currently the 18th most deprived local authority area in England (out of 
317) and remains the third most deprived locality in Greater Manchester as 
measured by the Index of Multiple Deprivation. In Salford 22.0% of children live with 
poverty and whilst this has fallen in the most recent year it is still almost a fifth higher 
than the national level (18.7%), equating to an additional 1,756 children in poverty. 
The impact on learning for children living in poverty was brought into sharp focus 
during the pandemic. In autumn 2021, the average primary school pupil had lost 1.9 
months in maths and 0.8 months in reading. Disadvantaged children lost an 
additional 0.3 months in maths and 0.4 months in reading (DfE, May 2022). This is 
likely to have been exacerbated since autumn 2021 with high levels of disruption to 
staff and pupils due to the Omicron variant of COVID-19. Twelve of Salford’s 20 ward 
have a higher proportion of children living in low-income families than the national 
average. Three wards (Little Hulton, Broughton and Kersal & Broughton Park) 
account for a third of the children in low-income families in Salford, each with around 
1,200 children included.  Whilst most wards have seen a reduction in the proportion 
of children in low-income families over the last two years there are still 10% more 
children affected than there were in 2015. To achieve the national average level a 
further 1,750 Salford children would have to be taken out of poverty.  
 
2. Early Years and Primary Education Outcomes 

Context  
 
Due to the pandemic, there has not been any education assessment data since 
2019. Assessment took place within settings, but this was not shared or collated by 
the DFE. 
 

Children’s learning has been disrupted in an extraordinary and significant way by 
COVID. Provisional data for Summer 2022 for Early Years and Key Stage 2 
outcomes shows that standards are below the pre pandemic levels. Whilst this 
mirrors the national and regional picture, the gap between Salford and national is 
wider. Whilst as leaders we must not catastrophise this challenge neither should we 
underestimate it.  
 
The 2022 outcomes were not unexpected due to the impact of the pandemic 
(extensive periods of time that many children had to learn at home when schools 
were ‘closed’ and the periods of bubble closure due to the high covid cases that 
Salford experienced) and the continued attendance challenges that many schools 
continue to experience where its proving very difficult for children to re-establish good 
attendance following the pandemic, the priority regarding covid recovery for all 
education leaders continues to be a sharp focus. (See Appendix 1 for overview of 
Education outcomes)  
 
Primary tests and assessments returned in 2021/22, without any adaptations. A 

consistent approach to the format of the assessments was needed to help 

understand the impact of the pandemic on pupils and schools and how this varies 

between particular groups of pupils, schools and local authority areas. 

After two years without key stage 2 (KS2) performance data, it is important that have 

some school-level data to inform accountability.  However, the DfE recognises the 

Page 7

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/395130/index-of-multiple-deprivation-report-2019.pdf


   
 

 4 

uneven impact on schools of the pandemic and the challenges with interpreting the 

2021/22 data. The results will not be published on the performance measures 

website for the academic year 2021 to 2022.  

‘Part of the reason we are running assessment this year is to understand the impact of the pandemic, 

both nationally and within individual schools, local authorities and so on. If a pupil has not met the 

standard for any reason then this can be reflected in the teacher assessment judgement and that 

gives us the data we require.’  

‘Given the pandemic it may well be that higher proportions of pupils do not meet the standard for 

science teacher assessment (and other assessments). If a pupil has not met the standard for any 

reason then this can be reflected in the teacher assessment judgement and that gives us the data we 

require. 

The colleagues in the department responsible for school accountability recognise the uneven impact 

of the pandemic on pupils and schools, and will ensure clear messages are included with all data they 

share for that purpose, including in Ofsted training, to advise caution when drawing conclusions from 

the 2021/22 data.’    

David Malcom (Head of STA policy) 

‘The DfE strongly discourages users of the data from drawing conclusions based on direct 

comparisons with performance data from previous years. 

We will also advise caution when comparing a school’s performance with national or local authority 

averages, advising the users to talk to the school to understand the context for the results. We will 

also strongly advise against direct comparisons between the performance data from one school to 

another school, without taking this broader context into account.’ 

DfE Primary school accountability in 2022 (September 2022) 

 

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) 2022 

 

 This is a new data set, following the reform of the Early Years Foundation Stage 

in September 2022. The new Good Level of Development (GLD) cannot be 

compared to the last data we had in 2019 as it is a new measurement.  

 The purpose of the EYFSP is to form a professional dialogue between reception 

and year 1 teachers about an individual child and to inform parents about 

their child’s development. 

 At national and local level, the EYFSP dataset will continue to give an overall 

picture of early years children’s development and needs. 

 

Overview of Provisional EYFSP Data 

 

 The provisional percentage of Salford children achieving GLD in 2022 is 57.7% 

(GLD is defined as achieving expected in the first 12 Early Learning Goals (ELGs) 

covering Communication and Language, Personal, Social and Emotional 

Development, Physical Development, Literacy and Mathematics). 

Page 8



   
 

 5 

 From the Early Learning Goals (ELGs) that make up GLD, the five literacy and 

mathematics goals were the five with the lowest proportion of children achieving 

the expected level: 

o Writing 63.1% 

o Word reading 69.6% 

o Number patterns 72.5% 

o Number 73.7% 

o Reading Comprehension 75.7% 

 In the prime areas of learning, the 2 Communication and Language goals 

were the lowest: 

o Speaking 76.6% 

o Listening 77.4%  

 Girls’ attainment is higher than boys’ in Salford. The percentage of boys 

achieving GLD in 2022 is 50.3% but for girls is 65.75% This is a gap of more 

than 15%.  

 The ELGs with the biggest difference between boys’ and girls’ attainment were 

Fine motor skills with a difference of 16.7%. and writing with a difference of 

14.7%. (Girls’ fine motor 91%, boys’ 74.3%; girls’ writing 70.8%, boys’ 56.1%) 

 The percentage GLD for children in receipt of Free School Meals (FSM) in 

Salford is 46.7% whereas for non-FSM children it is 64.7%. That is a gap of 

18%. Only 51.1% of FSM children were at the expected level for the writing 

ELG.  

 

Comparisons from Previous Years  
 

Given the caveat that data was different, and this new set of data could be less 
robust we can draw some comparisons.  

 

 Salford’s % of children achieving GLD was steadily increasing year on year 
from 52.9% in 2013 to 68% in 2019. In 2022 the % was only 57.7%. This is the 
lowest percentage since 2015.  

 In 2019 the gap between boys’ and girls’ attainment was 16% in 2019 and was 

similar in 2022 at 15%, with girls outperforming boys every year since 2013 

 The percentage of FSM children who achieved GLD in 2019 was 60% 

whereas in 2022 it was only 46.7%  

 In 2019 the lowest proportion of children achieved at least the expected level 

in the literacy and mathematics aspects of learning  (reading 70%, writing 

66%, Number 72% and Shape, Space and Measures 72%) and this pattern 

was replicated in 2022, ( Writing 63.1%, Word reading 69.6%, Number 

patterns 72.5%, Number 73.7%, Reading Comprehension 75.7%) However, it 

must be noted that these 2 areas are both specific areas of learning and it is 

important to also consider the prime areas, in particular, Communication and 

language, which forms the foundation of learning for these aspects. 

Page 9



   
 

 6 

 It is assumed that the pandemic has had a major impact as many children 

have not had quality Early Years experiences over the last 2 years. Schools 

and Early Years settings have not been able to offer the full early years offer 

because of closures, staffing issues and restrictions of what provision they 

were able to offer. 

 During the pandemic Salford had to suspend the universal offer delivered 

through Early Help and the Family Hubs. This included the pause of stay and 

play sessions, baby socials, parenting classes, antenatal groups and Talking 

Tots sessions. There was a short period of time before an online and virtual 

offer could be mobilised, but no face to face sessions could be offered. This 

was also true of the REAL Project (Early Literacy) to impact on home learning 

and early literacy for nursery aged children in 27 schools across Salford. An 

evaluation report for this project is expected this term.  

 In line with the suspension of the healthy child programme the 18-month 

assessment which is delivered by the Early Help Service was also paused for 

a period of time. This resulted in children and their families not being seen in 

their home environment and therefore not having a child development 

assessment (Ages and Stages Questionnaire Social and Emotional) and a 

speech and language assessment (Wellcomm) and early identification and 

intervention being delivered.  

 

EYFS – Actions taken, and support provided in 2021 to 2022 academic 

year 

Assessment - Training programme offered 
EYFS 
No longer a statutory requirement for LAs to moderate judgements. However, 

Salford remain committed to working with practitioners to support consistency 

and accuracy and to create a healthy climate of discussion around assessment 

and to encourage on-going professional development.  

The LA offered training and cluster meetings to support practitioners with the 

revised framework and to become familiar with the revised ELGs. Although the 

ELGs are now referred to as short and low stakes assessment, accurate 

judgements are still crucial.  

The cluster meetings were Community of Practice events based on the EYFS 

Handbook (2022) definition of ‘Moderation’:  

 Moderation of EYFS profile assessments should be a collaborative process 

with colleagues. 

 It is important for teachers to build a shared understanding of the ELGs and 

the EYFS framework. 

 Schools may wish to work together so that teachers can share experiences 

and develop their assessment skills. 

 

Page 10



   
 

 7 

A range of free EYFS training events were provided (via Microsoft Teams) 

throughout the year. All schools and settings attended at least one of the 

sessions from the training programme. 

Training included: 

o Child development 

o A range of GM sessions (including transition to Year 1) 

o Speech and Language training 

o EYFS and the Revised EYFS (20/10/21) 

o Reception Cluster meetings x 4 (19/5/22) – do we need dates? 

 
 

Positive feedback from delegates during training and at the cluster meetings: 

 The value of working alongside colleagues from other schools 

 Reassurance that lower than expected data was the same in many 

other schools 

 Confirmation that pupils were not secure in similar aspects of a 

standard due to gaps in teaching and gaps in learning 

 Opportunities for LA facilitators and colleagues to share effective 

practice and support in identifying next steps in learning   

 

EYFS - Salford actions for 2022 to 2023 academic year 

  Relaunch and refresh WellComm (Speech Language and 

communication screening tool with related interventions).  All Early 

Years settings, schools and Family Hubs have copies of the 

assessment tool to use as an initial screening intervention, with follow 

up interventions for communication and language development. The 

relaunch events will be in September and the intention of the events is 

to put WellComm back in the forefront of practice and ensure that 

practitioners are using the interventions in the best way in order to 

impact on children’s development. The focus on communication and 

language is a foundation to other areas of learning, in particular literacy.  

 Establish communities of practice for nursery practitioners and teachers 

and reception teachers. These will run once a term and will be an 

opportunity for practitioners to share good practice including formative 

assessment in those areas of learning which were lowest in EYFSP for 

Salford. These will be facilitated by experienced teachers and 

practitioners, including pre-school staff from the 5 LA nurseries.  

 In summer term, the EYFSP facilitation events (formally moderation 

events) will be entirely focused on the 3 literacy goals. The intention of 

this focus is to impact on reception teachers’ understanding of how to 

assess against the three goals. These three goals were the lowest 

scoring in 2022 and it is felt that this might be partly due to lack on 

understanding of what the goal looks like as there are no longer any 

DFE exemplification materials or videos supporting these goals.  

Page 11



   
 

 8 

 Use the EYFS Schools Coordinators’, SLW cluster meetings and Early 

Help team meetings to share the data headlines with practitioners. 

Focus on boys’ and FSM children’s learning. Those supporting EY in 

settings and schools to focus on provision for boys and EYPP (Early 

Years Pupil Premium) children on support visits 

 Early Help practitioners to continue to offer universal 18-month checks 

using ASQ (ages and stages questionnaire) and WellComm to screen 

children and offer advice and guidance to parents on home learning 

environment and signpost eligible families to the 2-year-oldfunding offer. 

 Continue to improve the uptake of 2-Year-old funded places. The 

criteria for this funding is similar to that of Free School Meals for older 

children so reaching this cohort early and giving providing them with 

quality EY provision is crucial. In addition, a temporary additional QDA 

(quality development advisor) has been appointed to support and 

develop the quality of 2-year-old provision across the city. 

 

Year 1 Phonics 2022 

 

 In Salford girls’ attainment is higher than boys’. The percentage of girls achieving 

the expected standard is 74.2% compared to 66.1% of boys 

 For England, 78.9% of girls met the expected standard and 72.3% of boys  

 56.1% disadvantaged pupils in Salford met the expected standard at Year 1. This 

is a decrease of 13.6% on 2019. Nationally this figure was 62.5%.  

 While Salford LA average for Year 1 expected standard decreased by 9.4%, from 

79.5% in 2018/19 to 70.1% in 2021/22, the National average decreased by 6.4% 

(from 81.9% in 2018/19 to 75.5% in 2021/22) 

 

End of Key stage Phonics 

                  

 Year 2 pupils undertook the phonics screening check in the autumn term in Year 

2, as the check did not take place whilst the pupils were in Year 1. Those who did 

not reach the expected standard in autumn Year 2 had to re-take the check in 

June 2022.  

England Salford LA 

75.5% meeting the expected 

standard 

70.1% meeting the expected standard 

England Salford LA 

87% meeting the expected 

standard 

84.4% meeting the expected standard 

Page 12



   
 

 9 

 In Salford Year 2 girls’ attainment is higher than boys’. The percentage of girls 

achieving the expected standard is 88.6% compared to 80.5% of boys. 

 For England, 89.5% of girls met the expected standard and 84.6% of boys. 

 75.7% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford met the expected standard by Year 2. 

This is a decrease of 11.7% on 2019. Nationally this figure was 78.3%.  

 While Salford LA average for Year 2 expected standard had decreased by 7.5%, 

the National average decreased by 4.4%  

 During 2021 to 2022, schools have been reviewing phonics provision as a result 

of the DfE’s process of the re-accreditation of phonics programmes (completed 

spring 2022).  

 The DfE published the revised core criteria for effective systematic synthetic 

phonics teaching programmes, and schools have been advised to audit their 

phonics provision as a result.  The DfE English Hubs have been available to 

support schools in this process. 

 Re-accreditation was introduced in order to raise literacy standards and give all 

children a solid base upon which to build as they progress through school. 

  Some schools have purchased newly accredited schemes, others have moved to 

re-accredited versions of their existing phonics programme, and some have not 

yet made any changes. Any changes would have led to staff training and 

familiarisation with the new materials in order to use them effectively. 

 There is no statutory requirement for schools to choose one of the SSP 

programmes on the validated list.  

‘However, validation status indicates that a programme has been self-assessed 

by its publisher and judged by a small panel with relevant expertise and that both 

consider it to meet all of the DfE criteria for an effective systematic synthetic 

phonics programme.’ 

DfE 2021 

 

Phonics– Actions taken, and support provided in 2021 to 2022 academic year 

 Updates regarding the DfE phonics re-accreditation process were provided 

at Assessment Lead updates, Deputy Headteacher/Assistant Headteacher 

updates and the EYFS Co-ordinators’ termly meetings 

Phonics - Salford actions for 2022 to 2023 academic year 

 Recommend schools review accredited schemes if their data is below 

national, if they have not already done so. 

 School improvement visits to include a focus on phonics as part of the 
overall data analysis.  

 Encourage schools to consider the impact of tutoring and plans for this 

academic year. 

 All schools to ensure KS2 practitioners are trained in the teaching of 
phonics in order to support pupils who have entered KS2 not yet phonically 
secure. 

 

Page 13



   
 

 10 

KS1 2022 

 

READING 

 In Salford, girls’ attainment is higher than boys’ for reading. The percentage of 

girls achieving the expected standard is 65.6% compared to 56.9% of boys. 

 45.3% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford achieved the expected standard. This is a 

decrease of 13.6% on 2019. Nationally this figure was 51.6%.  

 While Salford LA average for Year 2 expected standard for reading has 

decreased by 12.7%, the National average decreased by 8%  

 

WRITING 

 In Salford, girls’ attainment is higher than boys’ for writing. The percentage of 

girls achieving the expected standard is 59% compared to 45.9% of boys. 

 36.8% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford achieved the expected standard. This is a 

decrease of 15.6% on 2019. Nationally this figure was 41.2%.  

 While Salford LA average for Year 2 expected standard for writing decreased by 

16.2%, the National average decreased by 11.6%  

 

MATHS 

 In Salford girls’ attainment is higher than boys’ for maths. The percentage of girls 

achieving the expected standard is 64.7% compared to 63.3% of boys. 

 48.1% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford achieved the expected standard. This is a 

decrease of 12.6% on 2019. Nationally this figure was 52%.  

 While Salford LA average for Year 2 expected standard for maths decreased by 

10.6%, the National average decreased by 7.9%  

 

KS1 – Actions taken, and support provided in 2021 to 2022 academic year 

Moderation and assessment - Training programme offered 
Analysis of impact of LA training 
Positive feedback from delegates: 

 The value of working alongside colleagues from other schools 

 Reassurance that lower than expected data was the same in many other 

schools 

 Confirmation that pupils were not secure in similar aspects of a standard 

due to gaps in teaching and gaps in learning 

National Salford LA 

 Reading 66.9% 

 Writing 57.6% 

 Mathematics 67.7% 

 RWM 53.4% 

 Reading 61.1% 

 Writing 52.2% 

 Mathematics 64% 

 RWM 48.5% 

Page 14



   
 

 11 

 Opportunities for LA moderators and colleagues to share effective practice 

and support in identifying next steps in learning   

Moderation visits 

 Positive response from majority of schools visited. Used the visit as a 

professional development opportunity to re-focus on the national standards  

 Confirmation of knowledge of the standards; many practitioners were clear 

of what the pupils could do, and why they did not achieve the next standard 

The impact of the LA support (with regards moderation and assessment) would 
have been better: 

 If more delegates were able to attend. Due to some schools struggling with 

absence, the priority was to keep teachers in schools. Pupil disruption was 

kept to a minimum as schools focused on catch-up with missed learning 

and wanted the class teachers with their pupils  

 If the targeted work was based on high-quality teaching in all cases. Some 

teachers new to the age group did not have the opportunity to interact with 

other practitioners in Year 2 or by attending LA training sessions 

 If all schools had re-established their termly Family of Schools cluster 

meetings (following their cancellation during the pandemic). Some teachers 

in a one-form Year 2 class, did not have the opportunity to liaise with other 

teachers to discuss the Teacher Assessment Frameworks, review national 

standards and national exemplification, and share their pupils’ books to 

support their judgements 

 If effective gap analysis had taken place.  If teachers were clear as to why a 

pupil would not reach the expected standard, they could have provided the 

relevant support to ensure any focused sessions (including quality daily 

teaching and tutoring) would have the desired outcome 

Now we are in the post-pandemic period and schools are relatively more stable, 
the above points should be able to be addressed in the 2022 to 2023 academic 
year. 
 

  

Key Stage 1 - Salford actions for 2022 to 2023 academic year 

 School improvement leads include a focus on key stage 1(reading /writing 

/mathematics) as part of the overall data analysis during individual school 

visits to ensure priorities feed into school improvement planning and pupil 

premium strategies. Encourage schools to consider the impact of tutoring 

and plans for this academic year 

 The central LA focus of support will be around writing 

 The moderation and assessment training programme will provide 2 

additional cluster sessions (focusing on writing) in the autumn term 2022 to 

support Year 2 practitioners. The sessions will be supported by LA 

appointed moderators who will share effective practice, focusing on pupils 

not currently at age related expectations  

Page 15



   
 

 12 

 Monitor and encourage attendance of practitioners new to Year 2 within the 

last 3 years at autumn term training. School improvement to offer a mop-up 

training session to support these practitioners if needed  

 Offer bespoke school improvement support to schools who are facing the 

greatest challenges in meeting the needs of the pupils in the teaching of 

writing  

 

Key Stage 2 National provisional data 

 

 

READING 

 In Salford girls’ attainment is higher than boys’ for reading. The percentage of 

girls achieving the expected standard is 77.2% compared to 67.5% of boys. 

 While Salford LA average for expected standard in reading has decreased by 

1.0%, the National average increased by 1.3% 

 62.5% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford achieved the expected standard. This is a 

decrease of 0.3% on 2019.  

National  Salford LA KS2 

 Reading 74.5% 

 Writing TA (Teacher Assessment) 

69.5% 

 Mathematics 71.4% 

 RWM 58.7% 

 Reading 71.8% 

 Writing TA (Teacher Assessment) 

63.3% 

 Mathematics 68.5% 

 RWM 53.8% 

Page 16



   
 

 13 

 

 WRITING 

 In Salford girls’ attainment is higher than boys’ for writing. The percentage of girls 

achieving the expected standard is 72.3% compared to 57.1% of boys 

 While Salford LA average for expected standard in writing has decreased by 

15%, the National average decreased by 8.9% 

 53.1% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford achieved the expected standard. This is a 

decrease of 16.6% on 2019. Salford is in 60th percentile rank compared to other 

LAs 

 

MATHS 

 In Salford girls’ attainment is lower than boys’ for maths. The percentage of girls 

achieving the expected standard is 68.2% compared to 69.6% of boys 

 While Salford LA average for expected standard in maths has decreased by 

10.6%, the National average decreased by 7.9% 

 57.4% Disadvantaged pupils in Salford achieved the expected standard. This is a 

decrease of 13.3% on 2019.  

 

Reading Writing and Maths 

 

Attainment in reading, writing and maths (combined) has decreased compared 
to 2019 at both the expected and higher standard. 

The Department for Education considers meeting the expected standard in reading, 
writing and maths to be key for success in secondary school and beyond.  

53.8% of pupils met the expected standard in reading, writing and maths (combined), 
down from 65.4% in 2019. 

While Salford LA average for KS2 reading, writing and maths (combined) expected 
standard has decreased by 11.6%, the National average decreased by 6.6% 

KS2 – Actions taken, and support provided in 2021 to 2022 academic year 

Moderation and assessment - Training programme offered 
) 

Analysis of impact of LA training 
Positive feedback from delegates: 

 The value of working alongside colleagues from other schools 

 Reassurance that lower than expected data was the same in many other 

schools 

 Confirmation that pupils were not secure in similar aspects of a standard 

due to gaps in teaching and gaps in learning 

Page 17



   
 

 14 

 Opportunities for LA moderators and colleagues to share effective practice 

and support in identifying next steps in learning   

Moderation visits 

 Positive response from majority of schools visited. Used the visit as a CPD 

opportunity to re-focus on the national standards  

 Confirmation of knowledge of the standards; many practitioners were clear 

of what the pupils could do, and why they did not achieve the next standard 

The impact of the LA support (with regards moderation and assessment) would 
have been better: 

 If more delegates were able to attend. Due to some schools struggling with 

absence, the priority was to keep teachers in schools. Pupil disruption was 

kept to a minimum as schools focused on catch-up with missed learning 

and wanted the class teachers with their pupils  

 If the targeted work was based on high-quality teaching in all cases. Some 

teachers new to the age group did not have the opportunity to interact with 

other practitioners in Year 6 by attending LA training sessions 

 If all schools had re-established their termly Family of Schools cluster 

meetings (following their cancellation during the pandemic). Some teachers 

in a one-form Year 6 class, did not have the opportunity to liaise with other 

teachers to discuss the Teacher Assessment Frameworks, review national 

standards and national exemplification, and share their pupils’ books to 

support their judgements 

 If effective gap analysis had taken place.  If teachers were clear as to why a 

pupil would not reach the expected standard, they could have provided the 

relevant support to ensure any focused sessions (including quality daily 

teaching and tutoring) would have the desired outcome 

Now we are in the post-pandemic period and schools are relatively more stable, 
the above points should be able to be addressed in the 2022 to 2023 academic 
year. 
 

  

KS2 - Salford actions for 2022 to 2023 academic year 

 School improvement leads include a focus on key stage 2 (reading /writing 

/mathematics) as part of the overall data analysis during individual school 

visits to ensure priorities feed into school improvement planning and pupil 

premium strategies. Encourage schools to consider the impact of tutoring 

and plans for this academic year 

 The central LA focus of support will be around writing 

 The moderation and assessment training programme will provide 2 

additional cluster sessions (focusing on writing) in the autumn term 2022 to 

support Y6 practitioners. The sessions will be supported by LA appointed 

moderators who will share effective practice, focusing on pupils not 

currently at age related expectations  

Page 18



   
 

 15 

 Monitor and encourage attendance of practitioners new to Y6 within the last 

3 years at autumn term training. School improvement to offer a mop-up 

training session to support these practitioners if needed  

 Offer bespoke school improvement support to schools who are facing the 

greatest challenges in meeting the needs of the pupils in the teaching of 

writing 

 The local authority will deliver a Key Stage 2 to Key Stage 3 Transition 

conference to focus on reading and writing 

  

 
 

3. Secondary Outcomes  

Data available in 2020 and 2021 is only available at an LA level as schools were not 
required to report this data to the DFE. Both nationally and locally the Key Stage 4 
outcomes were higher than 2019 as teacher assessment was used rather than 
examinations due to covid.  
 
For 2022, outcomes in 2022 have shown an improvement in all metrics both locally 
and nationally. This is because unlike primary outcomes which are measured to a 
defined standard Ofqual advised all exam board to set the grading at the mid point 
between 2019 and 2021 to ensure this year’s cohort weren't disadvantaged compared 
to their peers in the two previous years who did not sit examinations. Ofqual’s approach 
to grading exams and assessments in summer 2022 and autumn 2021 - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk) has further information on this.  
 
Secondary 
 
Most of our secondary schools are now in Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs). There is a 
renewed sense of collaboration with the secondary sector led by the Secondary 
headteachers in partnership with local authority officers. Currently secondary 
headteachers are identifying their own subject strengths and they have agreed a formal 
process to share these across all schools so that they can support each other, with the 
LA acting as a broker for this. 
 
 
Key Stage 4 Summary 
 
National Comparison  
 

 While Salford students still attain below the national and local averages in 

English and Maths GCSE at Grades 5+ and Grade 4+ there has been an 

 National provisional 
data 

Salford LA  

 English and Maths 4+ 

 English and Maths 5+ 

 

69% 

 

50% 

               61% 

 

40% 

Page 19

https://ofqual.blog.gov.uk/2022/07/06/exam-results-2022-10-things-to-know-about-gcse-as-and-a-level-grades/
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/ofquals-approach-to-grading-exams-and-assessments-in-summer-2022-and-autumn-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/ofquals-approach-to-grading-exams-and-assessments-in-summer-2022-and-autumn-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/ofquals-approach-to-grading-exams-and-assessments-in-summer-2022-and-autumn-2021


   
 

 16 

improvement of 8% in the grade 5+ measure and in the Grade 4+ measure.  

This improvement is larger than the national average improvement of 4.7%. 

There is however a 8.1% and 9.1% gap between the 4+ and 5+ results in 

Salford and those nationally and a 5.3% and 6.7% gap when compared to the 

NW.  

 Similarly, there has been an improvement in the progress of pupils in Salford 

from 2019 to 2022. This improvement is bigger than the national and NW 

improvement. In 2022 showed an increase in progress from -0.54 to -0. 41.  

(NB -0.5 equates to students achieving on average half a grade lower than 

their peers nationally).  

 

Gender considerations in attainment and progress  

 Boys made overall half a grade less progress overall than the average and 

girls made about a third of a grade less progress overall than average (based 

on progress 8). For the boys this was an improvement compared to 2019, but 

this is still an area for exploration.  

 Of concern in 2022 is the progress of boys in English which was almost 2/3 of 

a grade below average compared to that of the girls which is below average 

but less significantly so.  Boys' attainment in English is also 12% below that of 

girls at Grades 9-4 and 11% below that of girls at Grades 9-5.  

 
Priority Education Improvement Areas (PEIA) Comparison  
 
As part of the Levelling Up agenda Salford has been identified as a Priority EIA area 
due to the level of deprivation in the area. 24 areas have been identified as PEIAs.  

 Salford is the 20th out of 24 Local Authorities in the PEIA group of local 

authorities in terms of Progress 8.  

 In terms of improved pupil progress however Salford students in 2022 showed 

an increase in progress from -0.54 to -0. 41 and was only one of only 8 LA 

areas where pupil progress improved.  

 In terms of attainment Salford is the 21st out of 24 Local Authorities in the 

PEIA group of local authorities using the Attainment 8 indicator. There has 

however been an improvement of 3.8% on this measure since 2019 and 

Salford showed the largest percentage improvement when compared to other 

local authorities in the PEIA areas.  This improvement was also greater than 

the national rate of improvement.  

 While Salford students still attain below the national and local averages in 

English and Maths GCSE at Grades 5+ and Grade 4+ there has been an 

improvement of 8% in the grade 5+ measure and an 8.4% improvement in the 

Grade 4+ measure.  This indicates improvement in the teaching of English and 

maths in Salford. This improvement is larger than the national average 

improvement of 4.7% and the NW average of 4.2% and the second largest 

improvement in the PEIA group of local authorities.  

 Average Points Scores in Ebacc have remained static in Salford which reflects 

the position nationally and, in the NW and places Salford in 20th position in the 

group.  

Page 20



   
 

 17 

 There has been an 8% improvement in English GCSE results at Grade 5+. 

This is the second biggest improvement in the PEIA group of local authorities. 

There is however a 10% gap between the English Grade 5+ results in Salford 

and those nationally and a 7% gap when compared to the NW.  

 There has been a 9.1% improvement in Maths GCSE results at Grade 5+ . 

This is the second biggest improvement in the PEIA group of local authorities. 

There is however a gap of 9% between the Maths Grade 5+ results in Salford 

and those nationally and a 5% aps when compared to the NW.  

 There has been an 6.7% improvement in English GCSE results at Grade 4+. 

This is the biggest improvement in the PEIA group of local authorities. There is 

however an 8% gap between the English Grade 4+ results in Salford and 

those nationally and a 6% gap when compared to the NW.  

 There has been a 6.3% improvement in Maths GCSE results at Grade 4+. 

This is the biggest improvement in the PEIA group of local authorities. There is 

however a gap of 7% between the Maths Grade 5+ results in Salford and 

those nationally and a 4% gap when compared to the NW.  

 

Secondary outcomes – Actions taken, and support provided in 2021 to 

2022 academic year 

 All schools had Quality Assurance visits and follow up support where this 

is not provided by the Multi-Academy Trust 

 Deputy Heads Curriculum Networks facilitated to cover curriculum, 

quality of education, remote learning, assessment at GCSE. Brokered 

school-to-school support for GCSE moderation. Brokered conversations 

between subject leaders and the college to support transition.  

 Provision of remote learning CPD – Secondary and Primary working 

together on platforms also working with Ed Tech Demonstrator. Expertise 

identified and experts facilitated learning sessions on different platforms 

and teaching techniques.  

 Visits to schools made to evaluate quality of remote learning and 

summative report shared to all schools. 

 Literacy Leaders network facilitated   and further training for literacy and 

curriculum leads provided by National Literacy Trust.  

 Provision of leadership training on effective secondary and primary 

curriculum leadership for senior leaders in school led by Christine 

Counsell. (Cambridge University).  

 Remote governor training on curriculum. 

 Remote governor training on Ofsted’s expectations of governors.  

 Provision of individual remote learning reviews for schools  

 Provided Covid guidance, documentation, templates for risk 

assessments, communication to stakeholders and policies  

 Co-ordination of secondary /primary transition information sharing about 

individual students. 

Page 21



   
 

 18 

 Facilitated DfE funded NLEs to work with RI schools and to provided 

network for PSHE leads in response to Sexual Abuse and Harassment in 

Schools Report and introduction of RSE curriculum. 

 Provision of PSHE / RSE network led by the teaching school hub. 

 Strengthening of KS2-3 transition, including a relaunch of the policy and 

a reworking of the information that is shared between the primary and 

secondary schools. Several schools were supported by voluntary and 

charitable organisations this year to undertake some enhanced transition 

work with vulnerable students. This is to be shared in a seminar with all 

transition leads.  

Secondary - Salford actions for 2022 to 2023 academic year 

 An early analysis of the data suggests that schools will need to focus on the 
following aspects of school improvement in 2022: 
 

1. Improving attendance of all pupils, but particularly who are persistently 

absent and severely absent.  

2. A continued focus on reading and writing and speaking and listening 

across the curriculum, particularly at Key Stage 3 to ensure that gaps from 

Key Stage 2 are identified and closed.  

3. Secondary literacy leads and English leads to strengthen ties with the 

primary schools, particularly around writing across the curriculum. 

4. A focus on catch-up across all areas of the curriculum. 

5. Some schools are continuing to develop their curriculum planning in a few 

subject areas.  

6. Training for school governance to develop skills of secondary school 
governors.  

 

 
4. Whole LA Literacy Focus 

The Local Authority has been working with secondary schools on literacy for the last 3 
years. A secondary literacy leadership programme has been in place with the National 
Literacy Trust (NLT) working in partnership with Salford. School leaders have all got a 
reading strategy in place, particularly focused on the lowest 20% of their cohorts who 
are not yet secure in their reading skills. In addition to this, there has been an emphasis 
in secondary school on improving vocabulary and disciplinary literacy across the 
curriculum. There is some excellent practice in schools across Salford in this respect. 
Salford hosted a literacy conference last term which was attended by schools from 
right across the region.  
 
The city has been approached to become one of 17 regional hubs for literacy and his 
is timely as there is currently no literacy strategy across all educational sectors in the 
city. Literacy Hubs work on a place-based approach to addressing persistent 
intergenerational low literacy issues. Salford has already demonstrated a commitment 
to literacy in secondary schools through bringing together schools on the Literacy for 

Page 22



   
 

 19 

Learning programme as well as engaging libraries and other partners on the Salford 
Literacy Trail. The hub would be a conduit for: 
 

o Projects: activities which bring resources, opportunities and information to 

people 

o Partnership working with literacy as the focus  

o Campaigning in a way to change attitudes and perceptions of people to lead to 

behaviour change. 

NLT would support us by delivery of training programme for teachers and literacy 
leaders and developing networks, designing specific projects such as Literacy 
Champions, See Myself in Books and helping to secure book donations and to provide 
data analysis and needs analysis. Salford would also get access to free resources 
including books for libraries and schools and meet the author type events and 
workshops.  
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Education and school improvement strategies, Tackling 
Poverty Strategy  
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable  
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Not applicable 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Not applicable 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Not applicable 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Not applicable 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS: Cathy Starbuck  
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 23

https://www.salford.gov.uk/schools-and-learning/school-improvement/education-strategy/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/schools-and-learning/school-improvement/education-strategy/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/396390/anti-poverty-strategy-2021-24.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/396390/anti-poverty-strategy-2021-24.pdf


   
 

 20 

 
Appendix 1  
 
*Early years and Primary Data 
2022 is provisional data. The Government have stated that the main purpose of these statutory assessments will be to help understand more clearly the impact of the pandemic on pupils and schools and how this varies 
between particular groups of pupils, schools and local authority areas. They recognise, however, the uneven impact on schools of the pandemic and the challenges with interpreting the 2021/22 data. The Government 
have also clearly stated that 2021/22 data is not directly comparable with earlier years and anyone using this data should be aware of the caveats on the data due to the uneven impact of the pandemic on pupils and 
schools, and be sensitive in their use of it 
*Key stage 4 Data 
Results for 19/20 and 20/21 were based on unmoderated teacher assessment and cannot be directly compared to previous years. In 2021 and 2022 the methodology for undertaking teacher assesssment was not the 
same so it would be difficult to draw comparisons between 2020 and 2021. 2022 Key Stage 4 outcomes cannot be directly compared with earlier years as the methodology for setting and grading the 2022  examinations 
was different to previous years. 

Performance Scorecard     

  2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22     
Latest National 

Average 

                    

                    

% of children achieving good level of 
development 

67.6% 
(national 

70.7% 

67.4% 
(national 
71.5%) 

67.7% 
(national 
71.8%) 

    57.7%*      2022 65.2% 

Phonics at year 1 meeting standard   

82.3% 
(national 
82.5%) 

79.5% 
(national 
81.9%)     70.1%*      75.50% 

End of Key Stage 1 Phonics       

82.3% 
(national 
82.7%) 

91.9% 
(national 
91.4%) 84.4%*      87% 

% of pupils achieving expected in 
reading, writing and maths (Key stage 1) 

63.2% 
(national 
63.7%)  

64.3% 
(national 
65.3%) 

64.4% 
(national 
64.9%)     48.5%*      53.40% 

% of pupils achieving expected in 
reading, writing and maths (Key stage 2) 

61% (national 
61%) 

65% (national 
64%) 

65% 
(national 

65%)     53.8%*      58.60% 

% of pupils achieving 4+ in english and 
maths (Key stage 4)  

54.2% 
(national 
59.1%) 

54.9% 
(national 
59.4%) 

52.3% 
(national 
64.9%) 

58.1% 
(national 
71.2%) 

63.4% 
(national 
72.2%) 60.7%*     68.80% 

% of pupils achieving 5+ in english and 
maths (Key stage 4)  

31.9% 
(national 
39.6%) 

32.1% 
(national 
40.2%) 

31.5% 
(national 
43.4%) 

37.3% 
(national 
49.9%) 

43.1% 
(national 
51.9%) 39.9%*     49.80% 

Attainment 8  
41.7 (national 

44.6) 
41 (national 

44.5) 

39.3 
(national 

46.8) 
43 (national 

50.2) 

45.1 
(national 

50.9) 43.1*     48.7 

Progress 8  -0.33 -0.46 -0.54      -0.41     -0.03 

P
age 24



   
 

 21 

 
 
What is Attainment 8? 
 
Attainment 8 is a measure published annually showing the average academic performance of a secondary school. It is calculated by adding together pupils' 
highest scores across eight government approved school subjects. While these numbers are not made publicly available on a pupil-by-pupil basis, scores taken 
from across a school year group are averaged to produce a school's overall score. 
How is the Attainment 8 score calculated?  
 
The eight subjects are divided into three categories, called “buckets”: 

 Bucket 1 - English and maths, which are worth double marks, but English will only count for double marks if both English literature and English (ie English 

language) are taken. The higher grade of the two is used; 

 Bucket 2 – The top three scores from the English Baccalaureate (EBacc) subjects taken, ie sciences, computer science, history, geography and 

languages; 

 Bucket 3 – The top three scores from remaining EBacc subjects or other government approved qualifications (eg other GCSEs or Level 2 Certificates in 

some technical subjects). 

The grades are converted into points, put through a formula and finally out comes the school's Attainment 8 score. 
 
What is Progress 8? 
 
Progress 8 is a type of 'value-added' measure that indicates how much a secondary school has helped pupils improve (or progress) over a five-year period 
when compared to a government-calculated expected level of improvement. Confused? It requires a moment to get your head round but essentially it takes a 
pupil's performance in relation to their peers at primary school level, compares it with their performance at GCSEs (their Attainment 8 score) and then, after 
some mental arithmetic, establishes whether the individual has progressed at, above or below the expected level. As before, the scores for individuals are not 
published but they are grouped together to get an average for a school's overall score. 
How is the Progress 8 score calculated?  
 
For example, the Department for Education looks at a Child A's GCSE grades in eight subjects (Attainment 8) and then compares them to the GCSE results of 
all children across the country who, five years earlier, performed similarly to Child A in Key Stage 2 reading and writing. From here, numbers are crunched to 
work out the average expected level of progress for pupils nationwide, as well as how Child A has performed in comparison and the school's overall score.  

 A score of zero means that, on average, pupils in this school perform as well at GCSEs as other pupils across the country who achieved similar results 

at the end of Key Stage 2. 

 A score above zero means that, on average, pupils made more academic progress than pupils across the country who achieved similar results at the 

end of Key Stage 2. 

P
age 25

http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-education


   
 

 22 

 A score below zero means that, on average, pupils made less progress than pupils across the country who achieved similar results at the end of Key 

Stage 2. 

If a school has a negative score it does not mean there was no progress, but rather that pupils made less progress than other pupils across the country who 
achieved similar results at the end of Key Stage 2. 
 
What is Ebacc? 
A pupil is considered to have entered for the English Baccalaureate if they entered for qualifications in English, maths, sciences, a language and either history 
or geography. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26



 1 

Part 2: Closed to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 

 

TO CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL 

ON 14 DECEMBER 2022

 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES REVENUE MONITORING 2022/23 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Lead Member:- 
 

 Note the current position and forecasted position to year end for the Service 
Group’s revenue budget. 

 

 Note further measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

(a) Revenue budget 

The service group’s budget for 2022/23 is £102.606m. The forecast adverse 
variance is £3.914m and includes an estimate of the Children’s Services risk 
share within the fund. Based on current forecast, this is estimated to be £3.703m 
which is dealt with on a risk sharing basis between partners 

The forecast overspend on services outside the fund are forecast as £0.275m, 
giving an overall adverse variance of £3.978m. 

 
(b) Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

The DSG allocation for central services in 2022/23 is £54.736m and the forecast 
expenditure for the year is £54.438m, a forecast positive variation of £0.986m. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 SAP general ledger and BI reports 

 Various documents held on the accountancy team 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 Budget report 2022 to 2023 (https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/397621/budget-
report-2022-23.pdf) 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
(https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s21433/06ii%20Appx%20A%
20MTFS%202020-23.pdf) 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: High 

Key risks to budgetary control risk are identified in this report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: not applicable 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue finances and has been 
produced by the Finance division. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS:  

Alex Archer    0161 778 0498 alex.archer@salford.gov.uk 

Natalie Birchall  0161 793 2316 natalie.birchall@salford.gov.uk 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 
  

Page 28

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/397621/budget-report-2022-23.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/397621/budget-report-2022-23.pdf
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s21433/06ii%20Appx%20A%20MTFS%202020-23.pdf
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/s21433/06ii%20Appx%20A%20MTFS%202020-23.pdf
mailto:alex.archer@salford.gov.uk
mailto:natalie.birchall@salford.gov.uk


 3 

DETAILS: 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This report is set out in three main sections.  

 Section 2 sets out the forecast year end position of the 2022/23 revenue 
budget and integrated fund, highlighting any risks/ sensitivities  

 Section 3 sets out the forecast year end position of the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG), highlighting any risks/ sensitivities. 

2 Revenue budget 2022/23 

2.1 The current position and year end forecast for the revenue budget (also referred 
to as core budget) is set out in Table A below. Agreed savings have been built 
into the budget figures reported. Expenditure data reflects actual expenditure 
incurred up to 30th September 2022. 

Table A – revenue forecast 2022/23 in £m 

Service (core) Annual 
budget 

Forecast 
outturn 

Forecast 
variance 

Integrated 
fund (in) 

 

Integrated 
fund (out) 

Leadership and 

Safeguarding 

2.392 2.392 - -  

Specialist Services 44.503 46.231 (1.728) (1.700) (0.028)  

SEN, Access, and 

Inclusion 
24.634 26.634 (2.000) (2.000) - 

 
Education and 

Helping Families 
31.078 31.263 (0.186) 0.061 (0.247) 

Gross total 102.606 106.520 (3.914) (3.639) (0.275) 

 

2.2 Integrated Fund 

As previously reported, the majority of children’s expenditure is incurred via joint 
commissioning arrangements through the integrated fund. A risk share 
agreement provides that any overspend at year-end will be shared by the 
partners in proportion to their contributions to the fund.  

For 2022/23 the fund was set with an agreed opening deficit of £6.095m of which 
£2.931m relates to Children’s Services with the service risk share being £1.993m 
(68%). The expenditure variances forecast in 2022/23 in addition to the opening 
deficit are dealt with on a 50:50 basis between partners. The adverse variance 
includes an estimate of the Children’s Services risk share within the fund, based 
on current forecast estimated to be £3.703m. 

2.3 Further detail is provided in the following sections for each service area. 

Page 29



 4 

2.3.1 Leadership 

Leadership is forecasted on budget. 

Leadership - September position in £m 

  
Service area 

Annual 
budget  

Forecast 
outturn  

Forecast 
variance  

Leadership 0.613 0.613 - 

Safeguarding 1.779 1.779 - 

Total 2.392 2.392 - 

2.3.2 Specialist Services 

The service is forecast as an adverse variance of £1.728m. The pressure largely 
relates to outside placements and Children in need and Children Protection and 
partnerships. Work is being completed to provide further information on the detail 
of these pressures. 

Specialist Services - September position in £m 

Service area Annual 
budget  

Forecast 
outturn  

Forecast 
variance  

Child in Need 11.996 12.296 (0.300) 

Looked After Children 28.066 29.216 (1.150) 

Partnerships 3.752 3.997 (0.245) 

Youth Offending Service 0.689 0.722 (0.033) 

Total 44.503 46.231 (1.728) 

2.3.3 SEN, Access and Inclusion 

The service is forecast as an adverse variance of £2.000m. The pressure largely 
relates to SEN transport pressures. Work is being completed to provide further 
information on the detail of these pressures. 

SEN, Access and Inclusion - September position in £m 

Service area Annual 
budget  

Forecast 
outturn  

Forecast 
variance  

Asset management & delivery 19.085 19.085 - 

Complex Needs - Inclusion 0.061 0.061 - 

Complex Needs - SEN 5.489 7.489 (2.000) 

Total 24.634 26.634 (2.000) 

Page 30



 5 

2.3.4 Education and Helping Families 

The service is forecast an adverse variance of £0.186m. 

Education and Helping Families - September position in £m 

Service area Annual 
budget  

Forecast 
outturn  

Forecast 
variance  

Careers Advice 0.463 0.463 - 

Children's Administration 1.745 1.794 (0.048) 

Localities 2.865 3.049 (0.184) 

Early Intervention & Prevention (0.402) (0.450) 0.048 

Helping Families (0.054) (0.054) - 

Resources & Investments 24.505 24.344 0.161 

School Provider Arm 0.408 0.408 - 

Skills & Work 0.396 0.396 - 

Specific Grants (0.050) (0.050) - 

Starting Life Well 0.142 0.222 (0.080) 

Transforming Learning 0.394 0.377 0.017 

Youth Service 0.664 0.764 (0.100) 

Total 31.078 31.263 (0.186) 

3 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 2022/23 

3.1 The year-end forecast for the centrally held DSG budgets is set out in Table B 
below. 

3.2 The current position within the Non-Delegated Schools Budget for 2022/23 is a 
projected underspend of £0.986m. This includes the safety valve £2.25m funding 
and will be used to reduce the current deficit balance brought forward from 
2021/22 of £15.153m. 

Table B – DSG forecast 2022/23 

Funding block (DSG) 2022/23 
allocation                                         

£m 

Forecast 
outturn 

£m 

Forecast 
variance 

£m 

Risk 

High Needs 33.921 32.137 1.784 ● Green 

Early Years 17.197 17.371 (0.174) ● Red 

 
Schools / Central 3.618 4.241 (0.623) ● Red 

 

Page 31



 6 

Total 54.736 53.750 0.986 ● Green  

3.3 Further detail is provided in the following sections for each service area. 

3.3.1 High Needs block 

The service is forecast a positive variance of £1.784m.  

High Needs block 

 Annual 
Budget  

 Forecast 
outturn  

 Forecast 
variance  

   £m    £m     £m  

Complex Needs - Inclusion 2.695 2.690 0.005 

Complex Needs - SEN 31.046 29.267 1.779 

Youth Service 0.180 0.180 - 

Total 33.921 32.137 1.784 

3.3.2 Early Years block 

The service is forecast as an adverse of £0.174m 

Early Years block 

 Annual 
Budget  

 Forecast 
outturn  

 Forecast 
variance  

   £m    £m     £m  

Early Intervention & Prevention 1.455 1.501 (0.045) 

Starting Life Well 15.741 15.80 (0.129) 

Total 17.197 17.371 (0.174) 

 

3.3.3 Schools block 

The service is forecast as an adverse of £0.623m 

 

Schools block 

 Annual 
Budget  

 Forecast 
outturn  

 Forecast 
variance  

   £m    £m     £m  

Asset management & delivery 0.337 0.360 (0.023) 

Looked After Children - - - 

Resources & Investments 2.981 3.636 (0.655) 

School Provider Arm 0.300 0.245 0.055 

Total 3.618 4.441 (0.623) 

Page 32



 7 

 
 

   

4 Issues / risks 

4.1 The cost pressures identified within this report, particularly around SEN Transport 
and Outside Placements are being worked through and will continue to be closely 
monitored. 

5 Recommendations 

5.1 Lead Member is requested to note the current position and forecast position for 
2022/23, for the service group’s revenue budget (including the Children’s element 
of the integrated fund), and the Dedicated Schools Grant budget. 

Page 33



 

Children’s Scrutiny Panel  
Work Programme and Recommendations 2022-23 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Date Topic/Action 
 

Responsible officer (s) 

New Municipal year 2022 
 

8th June 2022  Service Group Priorities and Business planning 
  

 
 

13th July 2022 
 

 Transition from KS2-KS3 Victoria Ross 

14th September 2022 
 

 Youth Justice  

 Budget Monitoring  

Lee Matthews 
Alex Archer 
 

12th October 2022 
 

 Secondary School improvement – partnership working with Multi 
Academy Trusts (Spotlight Review  - Part 1)  

 Annual Report from Community Parenting Board  

Cathy Starbuck 
 
Rebekah Tucker  

9th November 2022 
 

  Domestic Abuse 

 Route 29 update 

 Youth Service 

Debbie Blackburn 
Sayma Khan 
Tim Rumley 

14th December 2022 
 

 Budget Monitoring 

 Education Performance Data 

Alex Archer 
Cathy Starbuck 

11th January 2023 
 

 Support for young carers 

 Family Hub Developments 

Debbie Blackburn  
Rebecca Bibby  

8th February 2023 
 

 Social Care Workforce Strategy  

 Improving attendance  

 Bridge Transformation Update  

 Route 29 update 
 

Zoe Fearon 
Cathy Starbuck/Sue Johnson 
Zoe Fearon/Becky Bibby 
Sayma Khan 

8th March 2023 
 

 Residential system 

 Budget Monitoring  

Zoe Fearon 
Alex Archer 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5b



                                     

Last updated 14.09.2022 2 

12th April 2023 
 

 Secondary School improvement – partnership working with Multi 
Academy Trusts (Spotlight Review - Part 2) 

 Thrive  Plan - Supporting Emotional well being 

 Improving attendance 

Cathy Starbuck  
 
Debbie Blackburn 
Cathy Starbuck/Sue Johnson 

Regular monitoring reports  

 Service Group Budgets (quarterly –Alex Archer) 
 

 

 

                                                         Topics in abeyance  

  

Reviews  

  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 

Title of Report  Date of submissions and responses Responsible Lead Member/officer 

 
Portfolio of the Board: 

 

Membership – 12 Members (9 Lab 2 Con 1 Lib Dem) 
 Children in Need 

 Integrated Looked after Children 

 Early Intervention 

 Children’s Safeguarding 

 Integrated Youth Support  

 Youth Justice Service 

 Complex Needs Inclusion 

 Complex Needs SEN 

 School Provider Arm 

 Starting Life Well 

 Skills and Work 

 Primary School Place Planning programmes 

 Partnerships and Commissioning  

 To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in 
this functional area. 

  

1. Cllr A Brocklehurst (Chair) 
2. Cllr J Brooks (Vice-Chair) 
3. Cllr A Kealey 
4. Cllr A Leitner 
5. Cllr M Morris 
6. Cllr L Nelson 
7. Cllr M Pevitt 
8. Cllr N Reynolds 
9. Cllr J Rowland 
10. Cllr M Wade 
11. Cllr A Warren 
12. Vacancy (Labour) 

 

Voting representatives: 

 One Church of England Diocesan 
representative – Dr Keith Archer 

 One Roman Catholic Diocesan 
representative – vacant 

 One representative from the Free 
Churches – vacant 

 One representative from the 
Jewish faith – Alex Klein 

  Parent-governor representative: 
 

o Zoe Brown 
 

Co-opted Members – non voting  
Ms Jacqui Morrissey 
Mrs Judith Elderkin 

Lead member: Councillor Jim Cammell (Exec Support Cllr Teresa Pepper)  
Key Officers: Charlotte Ramsden, Cathy Starbuck, Zoe Fearon, Debbie Blackburn,  
                         Rebecca Bibby)  

 

P
age 35


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE FOR ATTENDING FACE TO FACE PUBLIC MEETINGS AT SALFORD CIVIC CENTRE
	3 Education peformance data - Cathy Starbuck
	4 Children's Services Revenue Monitoring 2022/23 (Q2) - Alex Archer
	5b Work Programme

